
HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL 
180 NE 2nd Street – Hermiston, OR 97838 

Regular Meeting April 25th, 2016 

A G E N D A 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER– 7:00 pm

2. DECLARATION OF QUORUM

3. FLAG SALUTE

4. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS & RECOGNITIONS
A) Proclamation- Local Volunteers

5. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS (Anyone wishing to bring anything before the council that is
not on the agenda is asked to please do the following: 1. Limit discussion to not more than FIVE
minutes; 2. State your name and address; 3. Direct your comments to the Mayor.)

6. CONSENT AGENDA
A) Announcement of standing committee vacancies for the unexpired portion of a 3-year term

beginning July 1st, 2016 and ending June 30th, 2019.
Hispanic Advisory Committee- Positions #5 and #7.
(Deadline for submitting applications is May 9th, 2016.)

B) Announcement of standing committee vacancies for the unexpired portion of a 4-year term
beginning July 1st, 2016 and ending June 30th, 2020.
Library Board- Positions #1 and #2.
(Deadline for submitting applications is May 9th, 2016.)

C) Minutes of the April 11th, work session and regular City Council meeting.

D) Minutes of the March 9th, Planning Commission meeting.

E) Minutes of the March 21st, Hispanic Advisory Committee meeting.

F) Declare certain items of City owned property surplus to the needs of the City.

G) Final Plat Cimmaron Terrace Phase 1

Action – Motion to approve consent agenda items. Roll Call 



7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS

9. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES
A) Resolution No. 2023 –The resolution authorizes installation of a “STOP” sign west bound on Joshua

Court at SW 10th Street.
Action - Motion to approve and lay upon the record. Roll Call

B) Ordinance No. 2240 – Consider an amendment Section 112.25 “Distribution of Taxes; Fees” of
Chapter 112 “Transient Room Tax” of the Hermiston City Code.
Action -  Mayor requests first reading of the ordinance be read by title only and calls for a roll

call.  Roll Call 
Action -  Mayor requests that the ordinance be put on for final adoption at this meeting and that

the second reading be by title only and calls for a roll call.  Roll Call 
Action -  Motion that ordinance No. 2240 be adopted and become effective July 1, 2016. Roll

Call 

10. OTHER
A) EOTEC Monthly Report

B) Goal Setting Report
Action - Motion to approve. Roll Call 

C) March Financial Report- Amy Palmer
Action - Motion to approve. Roll Call 

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS
A) City Committees and Liaison: Airport Advisory, Budget, Hispanic Advisory, Library Board, Parks &

Recreation, Planning Commission, Recreation Projects Fund, Faith-Based Advisory Committee,
Community Enhancement Committee, Public Safety Committee, Public Infrastructure Committee.

B) Mayor’s Report –

C) Council Report –

D) Manager’s Report –

12. ADJOURNMENT

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS 
At City Hall unless otherwise specified 

Apr 25 7:00pm City Council Meeting 
Apr 27 4:00pm Library Board Meeting 
Apr 29 7:00 am EOTEC Meeting 

(Stafford Hansell Government Center) 
May 3 4:00pm Faith-Based Advisory Committee Meeting 
May 9 6:00 pm City Council Work Session 
May 9 7:00pm City Council Meeting 
May 4 4:00pm Airport Advisory Committee Meeting 
May 11 7:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 
May 12 5:30pm Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting 
May 13 7:00 am EOTEC Meeting 

(Stafford Hansell Government Center) 
May 13    3:00pm to 7:00pm EOTEC OPEN HOUSE @ 1705 E Airport Rd 
May 16 7:00pm  Hispanic Advisory Committee Meeting 

a. Recycle Event Report



PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, service to others is a hallmark of the American character, and central to how we 
meet our challenges; and 

WHEREAS, the nation’s cities are increasingly turning to volunteerism as a cost-effective 
strategy to meet their needs; and 

WHEREAS, there are countless examples of local volunteer organizations coming together to 
make Hermiston a much better place; and 

WHEREAS, the National League of Cities, National Association of Counties, and mayors and 
county officials across the country annually join together for the Mayor and County Recognition 
Day for National Service. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that I, Dr. David Drotzmann, Mayor of Hermiston, do 
hereby proclaim April 26, 2016, as National Service Recognition Day,  and encourage residents 
to recognize the positive impact of community service in our city; to thank those who serve; and 
to find ways to give back to their communities. 

SIGNED this 25th day of April, 2016 

_________________________________ 
Dr. David Drotzmann, Mayor 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Work Session April 11th, 2016 

Page 1 of 3 

Mayor Drotzmann called the work session meeting to order at 6:00 pm. Present were Councilors Myers, 
Primmer, Hardin, Beas-Fitzgerald, and Smith. Councilor Kirwan, Davis, and Gutierrez were excused. Staff 
members in attendance were City Manager Byron Smith, City Attorney Gary Luisi, Assistant City 
Manager Mark Morgan (arrived at 6:39) Chief Edmiston, Bill Schmittle, Ron Sivey, Roy Bicknell, Larry 
Fetter (arrived at 6:10pm), and Lilly Alarcon-Strong. News media present was Jade McDowell of the East 
Oregon.   

Biosolids Handling 
City Manager Smith introduced Brett Moore with Anderson Perry. Mr. Moore stated when dealing with 
wastewater treatment there are two treatment streams: one solids and one liquids. The liquids are 
treated and placed back into the environment and the solids are treated and placed in ponds for 
disposal at a later time. 2014 plant improvements were only focused on the liquid stream process as 
phase one of the plan, phase two would focus on irrigation and solids stream improvements.  

Mr. Moore stated records from 2014 show the City produces 210 tons of dry solids annually; once they 
are treated they are stored in a lagoon. Once the lagoon is full, the lagoon is cleaned out at $1,000 per 
ton of dry solids but does not include disposal. The lagoon is not cleaned annually, and it is estimated 
that there is currently 1,000 tons of solids that will need to be disposed of at a cost of about $1 million. 
Mr. Moore stated at this time, the lagoon is full and needs to be cleaned sooner rather than later. Mr. 
Moore has been working with Mr. Schmittle to try to establish a better and less expensive way to 
dispose of solids and has come up with two phases of a solution:  

One: haul solids on a daily basis to be disposed of instead of pumping the solids into the storage lagoon, 
cleaning the lagoon once it is full, and then disposing of the solids in a landfill at $16.00 per wet ton. The 
solids costs is not in disposing of them, it’s the cost of handling them that is expensive. The initially cost 
of switching to this system would be about $750,000 but will save the City about $147,000 per year as 
the cost of dry solids disposal would decrease from $1,000 per ton to $310 per ton.  

Two: find growers in the area who will use the solids for ground production. Mr. Moore stated the EPA’s 
regulations state that solids cannot contaminate the ground water or the soil beyond a usable condition, 
but annual production is possible with a 100 acre site or a 400 acre site could be used on a rotational 
basis with growing restrictions. 

(Mr. Fetter arrived at 6:10pm) 

Councilor Hardin asked if the plant still had dryer beds and if the City could store the waste on city 
owned land.  

Mr. Moore stated dryer beds are still at the plant but are only adequate enough to handle about ½ of 
the waste the City is producing and there are issues with storing waste on city owned land. First, 
transporting the waste to the land will be difficult and stock piling the waste would leave a strong smell 
to nearby residents. 

Councilor Beas-Fitzgerald asked when will the lagoon need to be cleaned. 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Work Session April 11th, 2016 

Page 2 of 3 

Recycled Water Superintendent Bill Schmittle stated the lagoon is filled to capacity and will need to be 
cleaned within the next two months.  

City Manager Smith stated regardless, the lagoon will need to be cleaned out, but asked if the City also 
wants to look at another option to either minimize or eliminate the use of the lagoon and bring the City 
a more cost effective method of dealing with solids. 

(Councilor Beas-Fitzgerald exited the meeting at 6:20pm) 

Mr. Moore stated solids can be thickened using the digesters to eliminate water and help with the solids 
treatment, mixing improvements would need to be done, and solids dewatering. This entire process will 
make it less expensive to haul for disposal. Changing to this process would require two truckloads of 
waste to be landfilled a day. If the City decides to do land application, the City will need to stockpile 
solids in the drying beds for a few months of the year and then apply it in the spring or fall depending on 
the grower.  

Councilor Myers asked how long it would take to install the solids dewatering system. 

Mr. Moore stated the Recycled Water Treatment Plant already has a facility to handle this system. In 
order to facilitate this process the building timeline would be about 12 weeks.  

There was some discussion regarding how many dryer beds the City currently has, the equipment and 
process to be used for dewatering and retreating water used in the dewatering process. 

(Councilor Beas-Fitzgerald returned to the meeting at 6:25pm) 

Councilor Primmer asked if the City would charge a delivery fee for growers wanting to use solids and if 
the growers would be purchasing the solids as well. 

Mr. Moore stated the City of Portland and Salem pays a contractor to pick up and haul the biosolids, this 
contractor must follow DEQ regulations, but many communities that Anderson Perry works with, 
including the City of Umatilla, choose their own producers, site selection, follow the DEQ regulations, 
and use their own contracts.  

City Manager Smith stated he would like to use the same method as Umatilla where the landowners 
wouldn’t pay to take the biosolids, but the City isn’t paying anyone to take it either, and the City would 
make sure DEQ regulations are being followed.  

Mr. Moore stated it is important to note that the City has an anaerobic digester which creates odors. 
And as the City continues to grow, there may be more people affected by the smell from this process. 
Changing the biosolids process will help control the odor. 

Councilor Smith asked if the City could receive sanctions if growers are using the biosolids 
inappropriately, and asked who would test the soil. 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Work Session April 11th, 2016 

Page 3 of 3 

Mr. Moore stated there is not many places where the grower could get outside of regulations besides 
crop restrictions for human consumption for the first three years. 

Recycled Water Superintendent Bill Schmittle stated his department is certified to take these samples. 

Mayor Drotzmann asked how long it would take to pay off the capital outlay for this expense. 

Mr. Moore stated about 3 to 4 years with equipment lasting about 15 years. 

Mayor Drotzmann stated he is in favor of a process that will save the City money and potentially help 
with the odor at the plant as well.  

Mr. Moore stated if the City decides to implement one of these options, the lagoon would not be used 
again, but it would be recommended that the City maintain the lagoon as it is a capital investment and 
can be used as a backup as well. Mr. Moore asked the Council to think about these 3 things: cleaning the 
lagoon, capital improvements that will reduce operating costs, and how to dispose of the biosolids. 

(Assistant City Manager Morgan arrived at 6:39pm) 

City Manager Smith stated the City would do a RFP for bids and invite the public to give more 
information regarding participating in this process.  

City Manager Smith stated one thing to consider is that phase one of the plant improvements came in 
under budget, therefore the remaining budget could be used to pay for improvements on phase two. 
The state also agreed to loan the City $2.1 million for plant upgrades that were never used for phase 
one; there is a good chance the State will allow the City to use these funds for phase two. There is 
money available in the budget to clean the lagoon, but this is a maintenance item not a capital 
improvement item. City staff has been working on getting the financial pieces together, but a rate 
adjustment may be needed. City staff will continue to work on this and return to the Council with more 
information regarding costs. 

Mayor Drotzmann ended the work session at 6:45 pm. The Councilor took a short break before the 
regular City Council meeting convened at 7:00 pm. 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting April 11th, 2016 

Page 1 of 6 

Mayor Drotzmann called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 pm. Present were Councilors Myers, 
Primmer, Hardin, Kirwan, Davis, Beas-Fitzgerald, and Smith. Councilor Gutierrez was excused. Staff 
members in attendance were City Manager Byron Smith, City Attorney Gary Luisi, Assistant City 
Manager Mark Morgan, Chief Edmiston, Sergeant Kelly parsons, Clint Spencer, Amy Palmer, Heather 
LaBeau, Roy Bicknell, Ron Sivey, Marie Baldo, and Lilly Alarcon-Strong. News media present were Jade 
McDowell of the East Oregonian and Michael Kane of NE Oregon Now.   

Proclamation- Rotary 
Mayor Drotzmann read a proclamation recognizing the Rotary Club’s 75 years in existence and all the 
good deeds accomplished in the community by the Rotary Club. 

Proclamation- Altrusa 
International relations chairperson Stephanie Hughes stated each year Altrusa chooses an international 
project to try to make a difference. This year Altrusa has chosen The Water Project will raise money for 
people in Africa to drill or repair wells to supply clean water. Altrusa is challenging the community to 
only drink water from a refillable container from April 16th to the 30th, and donate any money that would 
have been used to purchase other drinks. The Goal is to raise at least $23.00 from everyone who accepts 
the challenge or a total of $5,000.00. Mrs. Hughes presented the Council with a book called A Long Walk 
to Water, and asked the Council to share the book with others as well.  

Kristy Smalley Hermiston School District Elementary School librarian stated this was a book that children 
read in battle of the books, and is encouraging children from grades 3rd through 5th to participate in an 
essay contest about the importance of clean water. Mrs. Smalley also stated there will be a kickoff party 
at McKenzie Park this Saturday, April 16th, from 12:00pm to 2:00pm and again on April 30th to turn in 
their donations. Donations can also be accepted at waterproject.org.  

Councilor Primmer challenged the Council to donate $25.00 each today to the Water Project. The 
Council accepted the challenge and donated.  

Mayor Drotzmann read a proclamation recognizing the Altrusa Water Challenge to engage the 
community in the critical need for clean drinking water throughout the world as demonstrated in the 
book The Long Walk to Water by Linda Sue Park.  

Unscheduled Communication 
Rose Kautz 894 W. Orchard Ave Apt 4 stated there should be more than one taxi service in Hermiston as 
she has to wait 30 mins to an hour for service.  

Consent Items 
Councilor Hardin moved and Councilor Primmer seconded to approve all Consent Agenda items, to 
include:  

1. Confirm Planning Commission appointments for the unexpired portion of a 3-year term
beginning April 11th, 2016 and ending March 31st, 2019. 
Position #1- Tami Rebman; Position #2- Philip Hamm; Position #3- Ben Doherty 

2. Minutes of the March 28th, work session and regular City Council meeting.
3. Minutes of the January 21st, Community Enhancement Committee meeting



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting April 11th, 2016 

Page 2 of 6 

4. Minutes of the March 1st, Faith-Based Advisory Committee meeting.
5. Minutes of the March 9th, Airport Advisory Committee meeting.
6. Minutes of the March 28th, Public Infrastructure Committee meeting.

Motion carried unanimously. 

2014-2015 Supplemental Budget Hearing  
At 7:18 pm Mayor Drotzmann opened the hearing to consider a supplemental budget for the 2015-2016 
fiscal year. There was no conflict of interest from the Council. 

Finance Director Amy Palmer stated at times adjustments are needed in the budget as the budget is 
prepared well in advance. The following are proposed supplemental budget items for consideration: 
The General Fund by $963,379, the Street Fund by $101,900, the Utility Fund by $197,871, the 
Recreation Special Revenue Fund by $1,070, the Municipal Court Special Revenue Fund by $4,215, the 
Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund by $7,500, the Conference Center Fund by $32,570, the Energy 
Services Fund by $300,000, the Regional Water Fund by $550,000, and the Law enforcement Special 
Revenue Fund by $6,045. The Reserve Fund budget is being reduced by $68,740. The supplement to the 
City budget is $2,095,810.  New appropriations of $2,064,835 are being requested and $30,975 is being 
requested for reserve for future expenditure.  

Mrs. Palmer stated Resolutions 2020, 2021, and 2022, which will come before the council later in the 
meeting, authorizes additional expenditures, inter-fund transfers, establishes reserves and establishes 
accounts for the 2015-2016 fiscal year. 

Councilor Hardin stated on Resolution 2020, Exhibit A, should read authorized transfer of $10,000. not 
$10.00. 

Mrs. Palmer stated she will make this correction. 

There were no comments from the council, and no one in the audience wished to comment. The hearing 
was closed at 7:27 pm. 

Resolution No. 2020 - Authorizing expenditures , inter-fund transfers, and establishes reserves- was 
read and discussed. Authorizing additional expenditures in ten funds, reduces expenditures in one fund, 
authorizes inter-fund transfers between multiple funds, corrects budget errors, establishes reserves for 
future expenditures, and establishes a new department for Landscaping. City Manager Smith stated the 
Landscaping Fund is only for utility landscaping services not including composting that was discussed 
earlier this year. City staff will continue to work on the composting element with possible future 
partners. Councilor Davis moved and Councilor Kirwan seconded to approve Resolution No. 2020 and lay 
upon the record. Motion carried unanimously. 

Resolution No. 2021 - Authorizing an inter-fund loan from the General Fund to the Reserve Fund for 
improvements at the Hermiston Aquatic Center- was read and discussed. The resolution authorizes an 
inter-fund loan from the General Fund to the Reserve Fund in the amount of $90,000 for improvements 
at the Hermiston Aquatic Center. Councilor Bea-Fitzgerald moved and Councilor Primmer seconded to 
approve Resolution No. 2021 and lay upon the record. Motion carried unanimously.  



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting   April 11th, 2016 

Page 3 of 6 
 

  
Resolution No. 2022 - Establishes one new account in the Reserve Fund and repeals Resolution No. 
1991- was read and discussed. The account is being established for the West Highland Trail that should 
be completed in 2017. Councilor Primmer moved and Councilor Beas-Fitzgerald seconded to approve 
Resolution No. 2022. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Recycled Water Treatment Plant Improvements 
City Manager Smith stated as discussed in the work session, City staff is looking for approval on moving 
forward to pursue additional improvements at the Recycled Water Treatment Plant to address solids 
handling issues and pursue adequate financing methods. Councilor Davis moved and Councilor Kirwan 
seconded to authorize staff to pursue improvements and financing options for the Recycled Water 
Treatment Plant. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Plan of Action for the 2014-15 Audit Report. 
Finance Director Amy Palmer stated in addition to audit findings, and as a new requirement, the State is 
asking for cities to file a Plan of Action for any deficiencies city’s have as part of their complete audit 
report. Mrs. Palmer stated this plan of action was accepted by the Council with an exception of a few 
newly added items to increase transparency when deficiencies are found in the audit. 
 
Mayor Drotzmann acknowledged the Financing Department for noting the issues and working hard to 
address them. 
 
Councilor Kirwan asked if there would be a follow up from the State regarding the issues that will be 
submitted. 
 
Mrs. Palmer stated from what she understands, the office that collects this information will compile all 
finding from all cities, counties, school districts, etc and report back to the legislature to try to improve 
transparency, monitoring, and oversight. 
 
Councilor Davis moved and Councilor Hardin seconded to approve the City’s Plan of Action. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
City and EOTEC 0.5 FTE. 
City Manager Smith stated prior to his appointment with the EOTEC Board, the EOTEC Board had been 
working with Mrs. Palmer to provide additional accounting help. After exploring all options available, the 
EOTEC Board has approved to finance ½ of the wages to hire a 0.5 FTE and asks the City to contribute 
the other ½ of the wages.  
 
Councilor Kirwan stated he feels that the City needs to plan for the future and take this into 
consideration as an operational standpoint. 
 
City Manager Smith stated the EOTEC Board and the Financing Department have been working on a best 
guess operational budget and plan to have something more permanent to present to the Council and 
the public in the near future.  
 
 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting April 11th, 2016 

Page 4 of 6 

Councilor Myers moved and Councilor Beas-Fitzgerald seconded the addition of a 0.5 FTE. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

Private Airplane Hangar Ground Lease to William Van Ryn  
Assistant City Manager Mark Morgan stated this is a standard contract at the Hermiston Airport to allow 
for the construction of a 3,000 square foot private airplane hangar. 

Councilor Smith asked what happens when the owners no longer want to continue with their lease, and 
what are the land lease costs. 

Assistant City Manager Morgan stated the owner can decide to take his improvements with him, as the 
lease is for ground use only, or the owner can sell the hangar with approval from City Council. 

City Manager Smith stated the land is leased at $450.00 per year, as the City is trying to generate more 
activity at the Airport.  

Assistant City Manager Morgan stated the land lease is also current with industry standards from similar 
sized airports in the State. 

Councilor Primmer moved and Councilor Kirwan seconded to approve a ground lease to William Van 
Ryn. Motion carried unanimously. 

Community Livability Asset Oversight Committee report  
Assistant City Manager Morgan stated with the help of Barney & Worth, Inc. members from the Council, 
Conference Center, Futures Task Force, and the community met to discuss what they felt the community 
should do with the Conference Center as EOTEC will be coming online soon.   

Assistant City Manager Morgan stated Barney & Worth helped administer surveys regarding this process 
with over 1,000 responses each time a survey was presented. The majority of the community responded 
by stating they would like to see these five things in the community: a community center/boys and girls 
club, indoor aquatic center, additional parks, trails, and open spaces, revitalize downtown, and a 
museum/arts and culture center. 

Assistant City Manager Morgan stated besides receiving over 1,000 responses from the final survey 
administered, the Committee reached out to additional committees, clubs, and organizations to focus of 
the most desired asset(s) indicated by the community. The results showed four out of the five projects 
continued to show interest in the community with the exception of the performing arts center and felt 
that a future Community Center should combine an activity center for the entire family and an indoor 
aquatic center to make it a more regional project, but the community should finish all phases of EOTEC 
as it was envisioned within the next 3 to 5 years before beginning this process. 

Assistant City Manager Morgan stated the contract for the Conference Center runs through 2017 and 
recommends bringing in a consultant in the fall of 2017 who would analyze the relationship between 
EOTEC and the Conference Center to determine what the community should do with the Conference 
Center. 



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting April 11th, 2016 

Page 5 of 6 

Councilor Hardin stated he is familiar with a similar building in Texas that was $20 million to build with a 
$2 million annual budget. 

Councilor Kirwan stated he felt like this was a good process and liked how many different people were 
involved in this process and have a plan in the direction that the community wants to go with its future.  

Mayor Drotzmann thanked all those involved in the process and stated the community is excited about 
what opportunity the future holds for Hermiston.    

Councilor Myers moved and Councilor Kirwan seconded accepting the Community Livability Asset 
Oversight Committee report as presented and direct staff to report back to Council in mid-2017 with a 
proposal. Motion carried unanimously. 

Mayor Drotzmann thanked Assistant City Manager Morgan for all of his work on this project. 

Committee Reports     
Community Enhancement Committee: Councilor Myers stated the Committee met with the consultant 
hired to review the Public Art Plan. The consultant had great inventive, interesting, and impressive ideas 
about what can be done.  

Assistant City Manager Morgan stated there will be plenty of opportunity for the Community to get 
involved with this process as the Consultant will present the ideas at the local Farmers Market, Eastern 
Oregon Arts Festival, and an Open House to gain feedback from the community.  

Mayor Drotzmann encouraged the Community and the Council to participate in this process and stated 
the Committee will meet again this summer to discuss the findings. 

Faith-Based Advisory Committee: Councilor Hardin stated the Committee was heavily involved in the 
Recycling Event that was very well attended and believes this is something the City should continue to 
participate in. Councilor Hardin thanked Parks and Recreation Director Larry Fetter for all of this work to 
put this event on for the Community. 

City Manager Smith and Mayor Drotzmann thanked all those who helped with the event including 
partners such as UEC, the County, Sanitary Disposal, the Faith-Based Advisory Group, and many more. 

Councilor Hardin stated the National Day of Prayer is Thursday, May 5th at Armand Larive Middle School 
from 6:30pm to 8:00pm. 

Hispanic Advisory Committee: Councilor Beas-Fitzgerald stated the Cinco de Mayo celebration will be on 
Sunday, May 1st on the festival street outside of City Hall and behind the Library. The parade will start at 
the Conference Center at Noon. 

Mayor’s Reports 
Mayor Drotzmann stated the City Hosted the monthly Mayors and Managers Meeting at the EOTEC 
facility and will host the League of Cities Meeting on May 18th at EOTEC as well.  



HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting April 11th, 2016 

Page 6 of 6 

Council 
Councilor Primmer announced that this week is National Telecommunicators Week and would like to 
give special recognition to all those who provide this very important service including his wife Karen 
Primmer.   

Mayor Drotzmann thanked Mrs. Primmer and all telecommunicators for their service. 

Manager’s Report 
City Manager Smith stated EOTEC’s Open House will be postposed to Friday, May 13th from 3pm to 7pm. 
The next work session will be about the City’s electronic use. The final Branding Committee meeting will 
be Monday, May 2nd at 5:00pm in the Rotary Rotary Room at the Conference Center. The Branding 
Committee will present findings to the Council on May 9th.  City Manager Smith stated the City has been 
working with School District to delay the demolition of the rodeo grounds to be able to host the High 
School and College rodeo events with the possibility to continue operations of the Senior Center until 
January 2017.  And reminded the Council to file their Statement of Economic Interest with the State of 
Oregon by April 15 and stated Executive Assistant Lilly Alarcon-Strong can help with this process if 
needed. 

Adjournment 
There was no other business, and the meeting was adjourned at 8:31 pm. 

SIGNED: 

/s/ Dr. David Drotzmann 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

/s/Lilly Alarcon-Strong 
ASSISTANT CITY RECORDER 



HERMISTON PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting  March 9, 2016 

Chairman Saylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Commissioners Flaiz, Caplinger, Erz, Hamm, and 
Doherty, Fialka, Rebman and Medelez were present.  Members of Boy Scout Troop 603 were in attendance 
to earn their Communications Badge.  

Minutes 
Commissioner Rebman moved and Commissioner Erz seconded to approve the minutes of the February 10, 
2016 Planning Commission meeting.  Motion passed.  Commissioner Fialka abstained.    

New Business 
Mark Zoller has submitted a final plat for Cimmaron Terrace Phase 1.  The proposed PUD is located on 
approximately 64 acres of land on the south side of E Theater Lane, east of the Pheasant Run Subdivision 
and north of E Elm Ave.  The property is described as 4N 28 02D Tax Lots 400, 500 and 600.  The 
applicant proposes as part of Phase 1 to create 78 lots each sized between 1,934 and 4,212 square feet.  The 
property is zoned Multi Family Residential (R-3).   

The applicant proposes to develop this subdivision as a planned unit development due to the need for 
several variations from the city’s development code.  PUDs are governed by §157.110 through §157.120 of 
the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.  The applicant obtained approval from the planning commission in 2010 
for the development.  The planning commission reviewed the preliminary plan in February 2010 and the 
final plan in May 2010 in accordance with the PUD provisions in 157.117 of the Hermiston Zoning 
Ordinance. 

Chapter 154: Subdivisions 

§154.46 Final Plat

Per §154.46 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, the final plat shall show: 

(A) The boundary lines of the area being subdivided, with accurate distances and bearings.  Shown as 
required 

(B) The lines of all proposed streets and alleys with their width and names.  Shown as required 

(C) The accurate outline of any portions of the property intended to be dedicated or granted for public 
use.  Shown as required 

(D) The line of departure of one street from another.  Shown as required 

(E) The lines of all adjoining property and the lines of adjoining streets and alleys with their widths and 
names.  Shown as required 

(F) All lot lines together with an identification system for all lots and blocks.  Shown as required 

(G) The location of all building lines and easements provided for public use, services or utilities.  Shown 
as required 



Hermiston Planning Commission     Page 2 of 6           March 9, 2016 

(H) All dimensions, both linear and angular, necessary for locating the boundaries of the subdivision, 
lots, streets, alleys, easements, and other areas for public or private use.  Linear dimensions are to be 
given to the nearest 1/10 of a foot.  Shown as required 

(I) All necessary curve data.  Shown as required 

(J) The location of all survey monuments and bench marks together with their descriptions.  Shown as 
required 

(K) The name of the subdivision, the scale of the plat, points of the compass, and the name of owners or 
subdivider.  Shown as required 

(L) The certificate of the surveyor attesting to the accuracy of the survey and the correct location of all 
monuments shown.  Shown as required 

(M) Private restrictions and trusteeships and their periods of existence.  Should these restrictions or 
trusteeships be of such length as to make their lettering on the plat impracticable and thus necessitate 
the preparation of a separate instrument, reference to such instrument shall be made on the plat. 
Shown as required 

(N) Acknowledgment of the owner or owners to the plat and restrictions, including dedication to public 
use of all streets, alleys, parks or other open spaces shown thereon, and the granting of easements 
required.  Shown as required 

(O) Certificates of approval for endorsement by the city council and certificate indicating its submission 
to the planning commission, together with approval for endorsement by other local, county and/or 
state authority as required by Oregon statutes.  Shown as required 

Conditions from Preliminary Plat Approval 

1) Applicant shall dedicate to the city the 7.09 acre wetland area to the city for park purposes.  As
requested by the Parks and Recreation Department, the applicant shall install the following
improvements on the park site prior to city acceptance of the park:

a. Utility stubs (water, sewer, and electricity) to the property.

b. A natural surface trail loop (department will work with developer to establish route).

c. Entrance paving and four paved parking spaces.

d. Simple kiosk (department will provide plans).

The park dedication is not part of the Phase 1 development. 

2) Applicant shall work with and receive certification from the Hermiston Irrigation District.  The
applicant should be aware that the City of Hermiston will not sign the final plat until the
Hermiston Irrigation District has been satisfied and signs the final plat.  The applicant shall



Hermiston Planning Commission     Page 3 of 6           March 9, 2016 

meet this condition of approval.  The necessary signature block for the irrigation district is 
included on the final plat. 

3) Applicant must sign a developer’s agreement and shall install grading, storm drainage, curb and
gutter, sidewalks, street paving, and all service utilities for each phase of the Cimmaron Terrace
development.  All improvements for each phase shall comply with city standards and
specifications and shall receive final approval from the city engineer.  The developer has signed
an agreement with the city.  Installation and construction of public improvements
continues on the site.  The developer anticipates completion of the public improvements
before the next planning commission meeting.

4) Streetlights shall also be installed at the applicant’s cost.  Once installed, the City will assume the
monthly service charges.  Streetlights have been installed.

5) Per Section 157.164(E) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, where it has been determined that
the extension of public facilities is required, all costs related to such extension shall be borne by
the developer.  In addition, any extension of the facilities shall be continued and extended in a
logical fashion to the extent of the development site so as to be readily available for adjacent
development.  Public facilities, in the form of water, sewer, and storm drainage facilities
have been installed at the developer’s cost.

6) Comprehensive Plan Figure 12 identifies this site as an area subject to development hazards due
to excessively well drained soils.  Therefore, the City will prohibit the outdoor storage of
hazardous chemicals and underground storage of gasoline and diesel fuels.  No facilities which
will require the outdoor storage of hazardous chemicals and/or underground storage of
fuel is proposed for the development.

7) The applicant will be required to completely pave E Theater Lane with two travel lanes of paving
from the western boundary of the development to NE 10th Street when Phase IV as shown on the
preliminary map is completed.  Curbing, drainage and sidewalks will be required for the
development frontage of Theater Lane only and will not be required off-site or on the north side
of Theater Lane.  The majority of the E Theater Lane paving will be completed at Phase IV
of the development.  Infill paving of E Theater Lane adjacent to Phase I of the development
has been completed.

8) Each of the lots in the Alora Heights pressure zone shall be required to pay $309.50 at the time
of connection to water and sewer services.  This money shall be used to fund future
improvements to the Alora Heights booster station which operates near capacity.  All of the
dwellings in Phase I will be within the Alora Heights pressure zone.  The city will collect
this fee for each dwelling constructed in this phase.

9) A portion of the development site is too low to adequately gravity flow to the sewer service in E
Oregon Avenue.  Therefore, the developer will be required to either construct a second sewer
line to service this portion of the development or construct a sewer pump station for service.
This condition is not applicable to Phase I of the development.



Hermiston Planning Commission     Page 4 of 6           March 9, 2016 

10) Sidewalks shall be installed along all new and existing street frontages within the development
and along the southern boundary of E Theater Lane adjacent to the development.  The applicant
will install sidewalks concurrent with each dwelling constructed in this phase.

11) The developer will install all necessary facilities to prevent the collection of surface water in any
low spot and to adequately maintain all stormwater on-site.  The applicant has met this
approval condition relative to the public improvements for Phase I.

12) The developer shall be responsible for obtaining access for NE 9th Street onto E Elm Avenue
from the Oregon Department of Transportation.  This shall include all required access permits
from the State of Oregon as well as all necessary right-of-way acquisition from affected property
owners.  This condition is not applicable to Phase I.

13) The off-site portion of NE 9th Street between the development and E Elm Avenue shall be
improved with paving only.  Curbs and sidewalks are not necessary for the off-site portion.  This
condition is not applicable to Phase I.

14) All utilities shall be extended to the eastern property boundary to be available for future
extensions in accordance with §157.164(E) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.  This
condition is not applicable to Phase I.

15) The developer shall dedicate 5 feet of right-of-way to E Theater Lane, bringing the south half of
the right-of-way to 25 feet from centerline.  The final plat correctly dedicates five feet of right
of way to E Theater Lane.

16) At such time that 80 dwellings are constructed outside the Alora pressure zone, the developer
will be responsible for constructing a second water connection to provide redundancy to the
development.  This condition is not applicable to Phase I.

Staff Recommendation 

Staff has reviewed the final plat and determined it is prepared in accordance with all final plat requirements. 
Staff recommends the planning commission approve the final plat subject to the following conditions: 

1) Applicant shall work with and receive certification from the Hermiston Irrigation District.  The
applicant should be aware that the City of Hermiston will not sign the final plat until the
Hermiston Irrigation District has been satisfied and signs the final plat.

2) Applicant must sign a developer’s agreement and shall install grading, storm drainage, curb and
gutter, sidewalks, street paving, and all service utilities for each phase of the Cimmaron Terrace
development.  All improvements for each phase shall comply with city standards and
specifications and shall receive final approval from the city engineer.



Hermiston Planning Commission     Page 5 of 6           March 9, 2016 

3) Streetlights shall also be installed at the applicant’s cost.  Once installed, the City will assume the
monthly service charges.

4) Per Section 157.164(E) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, where it has been determined that
the extension of public facilities is required, all costs related to such extension shall be borne by
the developer.  In addition, any extension of the facilities shall be continued and extended in a
logical fashion to the extent of the development site so as to be readily available for adjacent
development.

5) Comprehensive Plan Figure 12 identifies this site as an area subject to development hazards due
to excessively well drained soils.  Therefore, the City will prohibit the outdoor storage of
hazardous chemicals and underground storage of gasoline and diesel fuels.

6) The applicant will be required to completely pave E Theater Lane with two travel lanes of paving
from the western boundary of the development to NE 10th Street when Phase IV as shown on the
preliminary map is completed.  Curbing, drainage and sidewalks will be required for the
development frontage of Theater Lane only and will not be required off-site or on the north side
of Theater Lane.

7) Each of the lots in the Alora Heights pressure zone shall be required to pay $309.50 at the time
of connection to water and sewer services.  This money shall be used to fund future
improvements to the Alora Heights booster station which operates near capacity.

8) Sidewalks shall be installed along all new and existing street frontages within the development
and along the southern boundary of E Theater Lane adjacent to the development.

9) The developer will install all necessary facilities to prevent the collection of surface water in any
low spot and to adequately maintain all stormwater on-site.

10) The developer shall dedicate 5 feet of right-of-way to E Theater Lane, bringing the south half of
the right-of-way to 25 feet from centerline.

11) At such time that 80 dwellings are constructed outside the Alora pressure zone, the developer
will be responsible for constructing a second water connection to provide redundancy to the
development.

The Home Owner’s Association will be responsible for all yard maintenance.   There was discussion about 
how to mandate HOA compliance at full buildout.  

The four overflow parking areas are labeled as Tracts A-D on the final plat.  No street parking will be 
allowed on NE 8th St.  The Commissioners want the City Council to require No Parking signs to be installed 
inside the PUD.  City Planner Spencer will add that to the staff report.    

Commissioner Flaiz moved and Commissioner Fialka seconded to approve the Cimmaron Terrace Phase 1 
final plat subject to the staff recommendations as written.  Roll Call.  Commissioners Medelez, Flaiz, Erz, 



Hermiston Planning Commission     Page 6 of 6           March 9, 2016 

Rebman, Caplinger and Fialka voted yes.  Commissioner Hamm voted no, and Commissioner Doherty 
abstained.  Motion passed. 

Planner Comments and Unscheduled Communications 
Statement of Economic Interest forms will be completed using the Electronic Filing System this year. 
Commissioners must login and set up an account.  The form will be available March 15 and is required to be 
completed by April 15.   

Applications for Planning Commission Positions #1, #2, and #3 are due by March 14, 2016. 

City Planner Spencer invited Commissioners to attend the Public Open House on March 15 at City Hall. 
Joy Sears from the State Preservation Society will be showing conceptual renderings of several downtown 
area facades.  This is an effort to increase awareness of the HURA façade grants that are available.  

City Planner Spencer updated the Commissioners on the Transportation System Plan amendment.  The 
amendment to the City Council will not include roundabouts. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:40PM. 



HISPANIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING March 21, 2016

Page 1 of 2 

Chairperson Eddie De La Cruz called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. Committee members present were 
Manuel Gutierrez, Hector Ramirez, Claudia Jimenez, and Jesus Rome. Clara Beas-Fitzgerald was excused and 
Bryan Medelez was absent. City representatives present were Assistant City Manager Mark Morgan and 
Executive Assistant Lilly Alarcon-Strong. The Pledge of Allegiance was given.  

Minutes 
Manuel moved and Hector seconded to approve the minutes of the February meeting. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

New Business 
Presentation- Sheriff Candidate Ryan Lehnert 
Sheriff Candidate Ryan Lehnert thanked the Committee for allowing him the opportunity to speak with the 
Committee and introduced Undersheriff Candidate Robert Guerrero, and committee member and translator 
Erica Sandoval. Mr. Lehnert gave a presentation regarding his background and qualifications, what he stands 
for, what he plans to accomplish if elected Sheriff, issues with the current Sheriff’s Office, and how he plans to 
correct these issues. Mr. Lehnert stated the Hispanic Community represents more than 30% of Umatilla 
County, and feels as such, there should be more of a Hispanic and bilingual presence in the Sheriff’s 
Department. 

The audience asked questions such as: how he feels about Oregon Driver Cards for undocumented residents, 
how he would be involved in the Latino community, how he would improve translation services, and if he 
would allow his detectives to have ongoing domestic violence training. 

Mr. Lehnert stated he would need more information regarding the Oregon Drivers Cards, but would be willing 
to speak with legislators regarding the issue. He would reach out to the Latino community by forming a 
committee such as HAC to hear ideas and address issues and concerns. Mr. Lehnert stated he would improve 
translation services by hiring qualified bilingual staff and would encourage and allow all officers, not just 
detectives to participate in many different types of trainings so that officers have a wide range of skills dealing 
with all types of situations. 

The Committee agreed they would really like to see a committee formed that would represent all members of 
the community including the Hispanic population. And feel that there could be better communication within 
the Sheriff’s Office and with County Commissioners. 

Branding Committee  
Claudia presented the Committee with the two logos, taglines, and font options for Hermiston’s new brand 
and asked all those present to take a few minutes to fill out the survey. The last day to participate in the 
survey will be March 31st with a recommendation to the City Council in April or May.  

(Manuel exited the meeting at 8:20pm) 
Closing Comments  
Public 
Virgina Garcia-Rome stated the Umatilla County Democratic Committee is offering assistance to all those who 
need help registering to vote. Mrs. Garcia-Rome stated the Committee is offering assistance to all, no matter 
what party they will be voting for. Please call 541-720-6895 for assistance. 

(Manuel returned to the meeting at 8:24pm) 



HISPANIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING March 21, 2016

Page 2 of 2 

Virginia Garcia-Rome stated the Cinco de Mayo Pageant is taking applications for Pageant Court, high school 
girls in Umatilla County ages 16 to 18 are encouraged to apply.    

Committee 
Eddie stated the Cinco de Mayo Celebration will be Sunday May 1st located across from City Hall. The Cinco de 
Mayo Committee is looking for Latino business who would like to participate and contribute, as well as 
involvement in the Committee and volunteers to help set up and clean before and after the event. Funds 
donated are used to secure entertainment for the festivities. Meetings are the 1st Wednesday of the month at 
5:15pm at City Hall, the next meeting is Wednesday, April 6th, the public is always welcome to come to 
meetings to participate or for more information regarding all of these items.  

Hector stated the National Day of Prayer will be May 12th at the High School. This great event brings together 
all different congregations and beliefs. 

Next Scheduled Meeting 
The next scheduled meeting will be Monday, April 18th, at 7:00 pm. 

Meeting Adjourned at 8:35 pm 



City of Hermiston 

Subject 
Declare certain items of City owned property surplus to the needs of the City. 

Summary and Background 
The City, like all organizations, purchases or otherwise accumulates items of value 
throughout the course of doing business. However, over time, those items can become 
obsolete, too expensive to maintain, or have simply served their purpose and are no 
longer needed. 

Most often the best way to dispose of items with any value is through a public auction 
process. Attached is a list of items proposed to be declared surplus and sold. 

City Code 33.04 vests the City Manager with "exclusive jurisdiction" in determining 
whether property is surplus to the needs of the city. However, in the interest of 
transparency, it has been the practice of the City of Hermiston to submit the list of 
proposed items to the City Council for approval. 

Fiscal Information 
Most items included are of nominal value. 

Alternatives and Recommendation 
Alternatives  
1. Declare the list of items surplus.
2. Request the City Manager to re-examine certain items.

Recommendation 
Declare the list of items surplus. 

Requested Action/Motion 
Motion to declare the list of items as surplus to the needs of the City. 

Submitted by: 
Mark Morgan, Assistant City Manager 

City Manager Approval 

STAFF REPORT 

For Meeting of April 25, 2016

MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item # 

NO. 2016- 

SUBJECT: 
Surplus Declaration 



2016 
City of Hermiston 

Surplus Items 
04/25/2016 

City Hall: 
1. 2004 Panasonic laptop Auction 

-valued at $100.00 
2. 2- hp laserjet 64A black printer cartridge Auction 

-valued at $175.99 each 
3. hp laserjet toner cartridge 92274A Auction 

-valued at $88.59 
4. hp laserjet print cartridge 06A Auction 

-valued at $64.99 
5. brother labeling system and tape Auction 

-valued at $20.00 
6. 1960’s Dwyer Kitchen combo Auction 

-valued at $900.00 

Police Department: 
1. 1—2005 Crown Victoria Auction 

Vin #2FAFP71W85X116899, 214138 Miles 
-Valued at $4,000.00 

2. 1—DeWalt Heavy Duty Drill Versa Clutch Drill Gun 6.5 Amp Auction
3. 2—DeWalt Heavy Duty  Drywall Drill Gun 6.0 Amp Auction 
4. 1—DeWalt Heavy Duty 3/8 Right Angle drill Auction 
5. 1—4 ½” unknown brand grinder Auction 
6. Sharp 24” flat screen TV Auction 
7. HP Printer Deskjet 6988 Auction 
8. HP Printer Laserjet CP1518 ni Auction 



HERMISTON MUNICIPAL COURT: 
1. 1 Dell key board Auction 
2. 1 Dell Monitor Auction 
3. 1 Small monitor Auction 
4. 1 Dell Mouse with cord Auction 
5. 3 Computer cords Auction 
6. 1 rack Auction 
7. 2 Ricoh Toners MPC 3503 Auction 
8. 1 Phone Auction 
9. 1 File hanger Auction 

Water Department: 
1. Three flat screen computer monitors Auction 
2. Crt computer monitor Auction 
3. 4 Tower computers Auction 
4. 4 keyboards Auction 
5. Mouse Auction 
6. Samsung printer fax scanner copier Auction 
7. HP printer Auction 
8. Metal office file shelves Auction 
9. Compact/midsize truck toolbox Auction 
10. Confined space Air Blower & 25' hose Auction 
11. Aluminum hydraulic trench shoring & hyd pump Auction 
12. 2 air comp pump & motors Auction 
13. Pool pump, 1.5 hp motor & filter canister Auction 
14. 3" sch 40 pvc fittings Auction 



CITY OF HERMISTON 

Subject 

The final plat for phase 1 of the Cimmaron Terrace subdivision containing 78 R-3 lots is ready 
for city council approval. 

Summary and Background 

Mark Zoller has submitted a final plat for Cimmaron Terrace Phase 1.  The proposed PUD is 
located on approximately 64 acres of land on the south side of E Theater Lane, east of the 
Pheasant Run Subdivision and north of E Elm Ave.  The property is described as 4N 28 02D Tax 
Lots 400, 500 and 600.  The applicant proposes as part of Phase 1 to create 78 lots each sized 
between 1,934 and 4,212 square feet.  The property is zoned Multi Family Residential (R-3).   

The applicant proposes to develop this subdivision as a planned unit development due to the 
need for several variations from the city’s development code.  PUDs are governed by §157.110 
through §157.120 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.  The applicant obtained approval from 
the planning commission in 2010 for the development.  The planning commission reviewed the 
preliminary plan in February 2010 and the final plan in May 2010 in accordance with the PUD 
provisions in 157.117 of the Hermiston Zoning Ordinance. 

The criteria that are applicable to the decision to accept the final plat are contained in §154.46 
of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances. 

The planning commission’s approval of the preliminary plat for the development was subject to 
16 conditions of approval.  The conditions which are applicable to this phase of the 
development are as follows:  

1) Applicant shall work with and receive certification from the Hermiston Irrigation
District.  The applicant should be aware that the City of Hermiston will not sign the
final plat until the Hermiston Irrigation District has been satisfied and signs the final
plat.

2) Applicant must sign a developer’s agreement and shall install grading, storm
drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalks, street paving, and all service utilities for each

Staff Report 
For the Meeting of April 25, 2016 

MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item # 

NO. 2016 – 

SUBJECT:  Final Plat 
Cimmaron Terrace Phase 1 



CITY OF HERMISTON 

phase of the Cimmaron Terrace development.  All improvements for each phase 
shall comply with city standards and specifications and shall receive final approval 
from the city engineer. 

3) Streetlights shall also be installed at the applicant’s cost.  Once installed, the City will
assume the monthly service charges.

4) Per Section 157.164(E) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, where it has been
determined that the extension of public facilities is required, all costs related to such
extension shall be borne by the developer.  In addition, any extension of the facilities
shall be continued and extended in a logical fashion to the extent of the
development site so as to be readily available for adjacent development.

5) Comprehensive Plan Figure 12 identifies this site as an area subject to development
hazards due to excessively well drained soils.  Therefore, the City will prohibit the
outdoor storage of hazardous chemicals and underground storage of gasoline and
diesel fuels.

6) The applicant will be required to completely pave E Theater Lane with two travel
lanes of paving from the western boundary of the development to NE 10th Street
when Phase IV as shown on the preliminary map is completed.  Curbing, drainage
and sidewalks will be required for the development frontage of Theater Lane only
and will not be required off-site or on the north side of Theater Lane.

7) Each of the lots in the Alora Heights pressure zone shall be required to pay $309.50
at the time of connection to water and sewer services.  This money shall be used to
fund future improvements to the Alora Heights booster station which operates near
capacity.

8) Sidewalks shall be installed along all new and existing street frontages within the
development and along the southern boundary of E Theater Lane adjacent to the
development.

9) The developer will install all necessary facilities to prevent the collection of surface
water in any low spot and to adequately maintain all stormwater on-site.

10) The developer shall dedicate 5 feet of right-of-way to E Theater Lane, bringing the
south half of the right-of-way to 25 feet from centerline.

11) At such time that 80 dwellings are constructed outside the Alora pressure zone, the
developer will be responsible for constructing a second water connection to provide
redundancy to the development.



CITY OF HERMISTON 

On March 9, 2016 the planning commission approved the final plat subject to the conditions 
listed above. 

Fiscal Information 

The completed development will contain 78 townhouse dwellings.  Each dwelling will be valued 
between $100,000 and $150,000.  At $6.87 per assessed $1,000 the development will add 
conservatively $53,000 to the city tax base. 

Alternatives and Recommendation 

The final plat is prepared in accordance with the city’s requirements for final plat preparation.  

The city council may choose to either accept or reject the final plat. 

Staff recommends that the city council approve the form of the plat. 

Requested Action/Motion 

Motion to accept the final plat. 

Reviewed by: 

Department Head – Clinton Spencer, City Planner 

City Manager Approval 





NE
Alora

Dr

E Montana Ave

E Browning Ave

NE
 8t

h S
t

E Oregon Ave

NE
 6t

h P
l

E Theatre Ln

04500
04600

04700
04800

04900
05000

00100

0020000300

00400

00500
03200

0360005400

00200
00300

02500
02600

07800 07900 08000 08100
08200

08300

08400
0850008600087000880008900

11200 11300 11400 11500 11600 11700

11800
11900120001210012200

12700
12800

12900

13500 13600 13700 13800

13900

14000

14100

14200 14300

14400

14500

14600

14700

14800

14900

15000

15100

15200

1530015400

15500

15600

15700158001590016000

01100 01200 01300 01400

0040000500

00600

Legend
Area of Final Plat
Property Line
City Limits

0 200 400100
Feet ±



City of Hermiston 

Subject 
Resolution 2023: Install a “STOP” sign west bound on Joshua Court at SW 10th Street 

Summary and Background 
I received a letter requesting a stop sign at this location.  According to Mr. Tiede there 
have been some near misses at this intersection.  There is a post already in place 
displaying the street sign. This is coming out of a cul-de-sac and there is already a stop 
sign east bound on the opposing corner at this intersection.   

Fiscal Information 
Installation and materials will have a financial impact of $150.00. 

Alternatives and Recommendation 
Alternatives  
Do not install “STOP” sign. 

Recommendation 
Install a “STOP” sign at Joshua Court and SW 10th Street 

Requested Action/Motion 
Motion to approve installation of a “STOP” sign at Joshua Court and SW 10th Street. 

Reviewed by: 

Department Head        Ron Sivey 

City Manager Approval 

STAFF REPORT 

For Meeting of April 25, 20016

MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item # 

NO. 2016- 

SUBJECT: 
Resolution 2023 
Install “STOP” Sign 







RESOLUTION NO. 2023 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HERMISTON, 
OREGON, that it is expedient and necessary to install a stop sign at the following 
location for vehicular traffic regulations in accordance with the provisions as 
outlined in Section 70.03 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances: 

STREET TRAFFIC FLOW INTERSECTION 
Joshua Court West bound  SW 10th Street 

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage as of 
the date and year set out below. 

PASSED by the Common Council this 25th day of April, 2016 
SIGNED by the Mayor this 25th day of April, 2016 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY RECORDER 



City of Hermiston 

Subject 
This ordinance makes several substantive, and housekeeping, changes to how the 
Transient Room Tax (TRT) revenues are distributed.  The biggest changes are to 
include the Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center’s operations as eligible to receive 
revenues, and to create a dedicated funding source for making repairs to the Aquatic 
Center. 

Summary and Background 
The TRT is a percentage-based tax paid by travelers staying in hotels and RV parks. 
The rate for people staying in hotels for short periods is 8% of the cost of the room.  It is 
important to point out that this is entirely separate from the Tourism Promotion 
Assessment (TPA), which is a flat-fee charged to travelers. 

The existing TRT Code section causes a lot of confusion because it allocates revenues 
based on a combination of fractions and percentages.  Retirement of the Pool Bonds 
receives 3/8ths of all TRT revenue, and “everything else” that gets TRT funds receives 
the remaining 5/8ths.  Within the “everything else” category, the revenues are then 
disbursed based on percentages of that fraction.  These proposed changes will convert 
everything to percentages, and divert the small rounding remainders to a new fund for 
conducting preventative maintenance and repairs at the pool.  See Table 1. 

The largest proposed change is to specifically add the Eastern Oregon Trade & Event 
Center as eligible to receive TRT revenue to fund operations of that facility.  The City is 
obligated to help cover 50% of any operational subsidy which may be needed at the 
EOTEC.  This change will create a dedicated revenue source to help meet that 
obligation, which otherwise would have to come from the General Fund (local property 
taxes). 

This fiscal year, the portion of TRT earmarked for the Hermiston Conference & 
Community Center (HCCC), according to the existing TRT code, was estimated to be 
$161,000.  Based on historical operations, the actual public subsidy needed each year 
to operate the HCCC is approximately $90,000 per year.  This discrepancy between 
TRT revenue, and subsidy needed was exactly the opposite in the early 2000’s, but due 
to strong growth in TRT revenue, and good management of HCCC expenses, this gap 
has flipped to the positive direction, and continues to grow.  Rather than create a new 
separate component of the TRT just for the HCCC and EOTEC, these proposed 
changes allow for maximum flexibility to ensure operational success of the city’s two 
publicly owned event facilities. 

STAFF REPORT 

For Meeting of April 25, 2016

MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item # 

NO. 2016- 

SUBJECT:  
Ord. 2240- TRT 
Distribution Change 



City of Hermiston 

Fiscal Information 
Table 1 shows the estimated fiscal impact on the various budget areas which currently 
receive TRT funding based on estimated FY ’15-’16 revenues.  It is important to note, 
however, that gross TRT revenues continue to grow by 5% to 10% per year, and the 
new Holiday Inn Express and expansion of the Oak Tree Inn will also add more TRT 
revenue in FY ’16-’17.  Therefore, in a year-over-year comparison, some of these 
budget areas that are showing a decrease, may actually see more revenue; but simply 
less than they would have if there were no change. 

Table 1 
Purpose Previous 

Allocation* 
Proposed 
Allocation 

Projected Annual 
Change** 

Aquatic Center Bonds 37.50% 37.50% No Change 
Event Center Operations 28.125% 28% ($716) 
Economic Development 15.625% 15% ($3,583) 
Parks & Rec Development 9.375% 9% ($2,150) 
Parks & Rec Grants 9.375% 9% ($2,150) 
Aquatic Center Maintenance 0.000% 1.5% $8,599 
*Shown here as percentages already, for mathematical clarity.
**Based on FY '15-'16 projections.  Due to the continual rise in TRT revenue, actual declines will be 
smaller, and actual gains will be larger in FY '16-'17. 

.   

Alternatives and Recommendation 
Alternatives 

1. Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2240
2. Motion to deny Ordinance No. 2240

Recommendation 
Approve Ordinance No. 2240. 

Requested Action/Motion 
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2240 

Department Head- Mark Morgan, Assistant City Manager 

City Attorney Review-  Gary Luisi, City Attorney 

City Manager Approval- Byron Smith, City Manager 



Page 1 Ordinance 2240 

ORDINANCE NO. 2240 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 112.25 “DISTRIBUTION OF 
TAXES; FEES” OF CHAPTER 112 “TRANSIENT ROOM TAX” OF THE 
HERMISTON CITY CODE WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF JULY 1, 2016 

WHEREAS, the City of Hermiston adopted a Transient Room Tax in 1991. 

WHEREAS, the revenues from the tax are used to pay of the Hermiston Family Aquatic Center’s 
debt; operations of the Hermiston Conference Center and the Eastern Oregon Trade and Event 
Center; tourist promotion for the Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center; recreation and 
recreation-related programs and activities and park improvements; senior taxi program, 
economic development, street maintenance and similar programs funded from the general fund; 
and the addition of a swimming pool repair fund. 

WHEREAS, the distribution of the transient room tax for the above activities is set out in 
fractions and should be converted to percentages, now, therefore,  

THE CITY OF HERMISTON DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

(New language is in italics and language to be deleted has a strike through it.) 

Section 1. Subsection (A) of Section 112.25 “Distribution of Taxes; Fees” of Chapter 112 of the 
city code is amended as follows: 

(A)    Distribution. 

(1)    Five-eighths of The taxes imposed by § 112.04(A) and remitted to the city, less five percent 
retained by the transient tax collector, shall be distributed as follows: 

(a)    Forty-five percent Twenty-eight percent to improve, maintain and operate the Hermiston 
Community Center and the Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center; 

(b)    Fifteen Nine percent for recreation and recreation-related programs and activities and park 
improvements administered by the advisory committee pursuant to § 112.27(B); 

(c)    Twenty-five Fifteen percent to offset costs of programs such as the senior citizen taxi 
program, economic development, streets maintenance and similar programs funded from the 
general fund; and 

(d)    Fifteen Nine percent for city parks and recreation development administered by the Parks 
and Recreation Committee pursuant to § 112.27(D). The proceeds of the tax for parks and 
recreation development shall accumulate in a reserve account and may not be diverted or utilized 
in any other manner. 



Page 2 Ordinance 2240 

(e)    One-and-one-half percent for preventative maintenance and/or repairs to a community 
outdoor swimming pool. 

(2) (f)   Three-eighths Thirty-seven-and-one-half percent for of the taxes imposed by § 112.04(A) 
and remitted to the city, less five percent retained by the transient tax collector, shall be 
distributed to offset the cost of constructing a community outdoor swimming pool, including the 
retirement of any bonds issued for its construction. 

(3) (2)   Fifty percent of the funds collected from the tourism promotion assessment charge 
imposed by §§ 112.04(B) and (C) and remitted to the city, less seven percent retained by the 
transient tax collector, are dedicated to and shall be transferred promptly to the Eastern Oregon 
Trade and Event Center Authority to fund tourism promotion by it of the Eastern Oregon Trade 
and Event Center until January 1, 2031, when this percentage shall be 100% again. 

(4) (3)   Fifty percent of the funds collected from the tourism promotion assessment charge 
imposed by §§ 112.04(B) and (C) and remitted to the city, less seven percent retained by the 
transient lodging tax collector, shall be used to offset the cost of constructing the Eastern Oregon 
Trade and Event Center, including the retirement of any bonds issued for its construction until 
January 1, 2031, when this provision shall lapse. 

Section 2. Enactment Clause. 

Ordinance No. 2240 shall take effect on July 1, 2016. 

PASSED by the Council this 25th day of April, 2016. 
SIGNED by the Mayor this 25th day of April, 2016. 

______________________________ 
MAYOR 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
CITY RECORDER 



Hermiston Council Goals
January 30, 2016



What’s Inside

Council & Management     2

Introduction       3

Headlines for the Future     4

Defining the Vision and Values    5

Environmental Scan and Drivers of Change 7

Council Goals       11

Reflections and Wrap Up     13

Graphic Summary      15

1



City Council & Management

City Council
Dr. David Drotzmann, Mayor
Lori Davis, Ward I
Clara Beas-Fitzgerald, Ward II
Jackie C. Myers, Ward III
Douglas Smith, Ward IV
Manuel Gutierrez, At Large
Rod S. Hardin, At Large
John Kirwan, At Large
Doug Primmer, At Large

City Management Team
Byron D. Smith, City Manager
Mark Morgan, Assistant City Manager
Amy Palmer, Finance Director 
Bill Schmittle, Recycled Water Superintendent
Chuck Woolsey, Building Official
Clint Spencer, Planning Director
Jason Edmiston, Police Chief 
Larry Fetter, Parks and Recreation Director
Marie Baldo, Library Director
Nate Rivera, Energy Service Superintendent
Ron Sivey, Streets Superintendent
Rosalie Emerson, Court Administrator
Roy Bicknell, Water Superintendent 

2



Introduction

TO THE COUNCIL AND THE COMMUNITY

In January 2016, the City Council convened with the City of Hermiston Leadership Team for a Council 
Retreat to review the vision and values and discuss the Council’s goals and priorities for the coming 
years.

A facilitator led the group through a day-long discussion and documented and summarized the work 
of the group. The group discussed headlines they would hope to see for the future of Hermiston, the 
Hermiston vision and values for the Council and City organization, an environmental scan of current 
issues and projects in the community, goals and priorities, and reflections and insights from the day. 
In the pages which follow you will see a summary of this discussion, as well as a graphic which visu-
ally captures the vision, values and council goals for the next 5-10 years.

The City Council’s leadership in setting high-level goals for the community is important to the orga-
nization’s work.  Working together, the City Council, City staff and the community have much to look 
forward to.

Sincerely,

Byron D. Smith
City Manager
March 10, 2016

3



Headlines for the Future

Byron Smith, City Manager
“Hermiston, Here Comes Costco!”

Clara Beas-Fitzgerald, Councilor
“Top 5 Small Cities- Safe, Family-Friendly, and 
Great Schools”

Jason Edmiston, Police Chief
“Hermiston Lands Major Company!”

Manuel Gutierrez, Councilor
“Running a Marathon! Pace Yourselves to the 
Finish Line”

Clint Spencer, Planning Director
“High Rate of Repurposing and Redeveloping 
Properties”

Rod Hardin, Councilor
“Hermiston Reaches 50,000! #1 Small City in 
the U.S.”

Ron Sivey, Streets Super Superintendent
“Congestion Relieved on 395!”

Doug Smith, Councilor
“EOTEC, A Huge Success!”

John Kirwan, Councilor
“Hermiston, a leader in small city economic 
development”

4

Roy Bicknell, Water Superintendent
“Target Hits Hermiston”

Doug Primmer, Councilor
“Hermiston’s Public Transit- Best in the Na-
tion!”

Mark Morgan, Assistant City Manager
“Hermiston Hits 20,000!”

Lori Davis, Councilor
“Hermiston Opens New Aquatic Center!”
“Downtown Occupancy Reaches 100%”

Bill Schmittle, Recycled Water Superintendent
“Wins the Lottery!!”
“Hermiston Receives NPDES Permit”

Dave Drotzmann, Mayor
“Hermiston – Oregon’s Destination of Choice”

Rosalie Emerson, Court Administrator
“Hermiston, BEST City in Oregon to Live”

Larry Fetter, Parks and Recreation Director
“Hermiston Passes Parks, Trails and Commu-
nity Center Levy”

These headlines represent what each retreat participant would hope to see as a headline in a future 
newspaper or online source in five years from now.



Defining the Vision and Values

A Vision for Hermiston was established in 2006. As part of the retreat discussion, the Council 
and management team discussed today’s vision for Hermiston, and considered how the vision 
may be updated to reflect the current direction of the Council and organization. This vision is 
a statement of how the Council and organization work together to serve the community. The 
definitions below were developed by the Council and Management Team.

A Vision is….
What things look like in the future
How to get there
An idea people would like to see, a goal!
What was set in 2006 in Hermiston is happening
Where we are now and where we would like to be
A vision describes an organization or community as it would appear in a future successful state.

Values are….
Things you hold dear to
Community standards
Un-compromisable 
Things you adhere to!
Passed on from generation to generation
Guide decisions and operations
What an organization or community believes and how it behaves
They serve as a moral compass

5



Hermiston’s 
Vision 

and Values

Ideas Around the Vision...
 » Courageous, committed, collaborative leadership

 » Open minded
 » Ethical
 » Creative
 » Accountability

 » Building an inclusive community
 » Inclusive
 » Diverse
 » Friendly

 » Livability = a place where people want to live their lives 
and raise their families

 » Clean and safe
 » Affordable
 » Happy and healthy
 » Opportunities – economic and recreational

 » Continue to provide affordable, high-quality, basic infra 
 structure

 » Hermiston is a hub for the Pacific Northwest – 
centrally located

Our Vision

“The City of Hermiston aspires to support an excellent community. 
We strive to provide courageous leadership to create an inclusive 
community while providing an affordable, livable and growing 
economy.”

6

Our Values

 » Strong Work Ethic
 » Inclusiveness
 » Integrity

 » Generosity
 » Excellence
 » People



Environmental Scan and Drivers of Change

Overview

The purpose of the environmental scan is to provide context for the goal setting.  The scan allows the 
Council and staff to look at what is currently underway in the community and what has changed in the 
past few years.  City staff presented information regarding updates on recent projects and projects on 
the horizon.

The facilitator led the Council and Leadership Team through a discussion where the group identi-
fied the many drivers of change in Hermiston.  Change drivers are large scale forces which produce 
change throughout an organization and in various levels of the community. Typically, these change 
drivers consist of community or regional demographic, economic, technological, and other factors that 
create a changing environment to which organizations must adapt. Government organizations must 
continually reevaluate the way they do business and provide service, and seek to respond faster, use 
resources more efficiently, and produce high quality work and services. The ultimate goal is to maxi-
mize taxpayer value and maintain a livable, vibrant community. 

7



What’s Happening Around Us

Mark Morgan, Assistant City Manager

 » Urban Renewal District – Festival Street
 » Conference Community Center – What’s the long-term purpose and use
 » Public Transportation System – Dial-a-ride feasibility
 » Airport Taxiway Project

Rosalie Emerson, Court Administrator

 » Paperless, Casselle – manage archives
 » Kiosk – court payments and utility payments – organize and efficiency
 » Security doors
 » Training
 » New technology for the judge

Jason Edmiston, Police Chief
 » Trust

 » Internal with the organization
 » External with the community

 » Demand
 » Technology and body cameras
 » Politics and accreditation

 » Resources
 » Proactive vs. reactive

Roy Bicknell, Water Superintendent
 » New development (OSU Project)
 » Operations
 » Maintenance – proactive and reactive
 » Regulations
 » Infrastructure
 » Water Master Plan
 » Regional Water System

Bill Schmittle, Recycled Water Superintendent
 » New development (inspections)
 » Operations
 » Maintenance
 » Regulatory agencies (NPDES)
 » Solids treatment process
 » Sewer Master Plan 8



Ron Sivey, Street Superintendent
 » Transportation System Plan Overview
 » Streets – proactive vs. reactive
 » Future implementation of GIS System 
 » Ongoing street maintenance – sweeping, repair, stormwater
 » Fleet management
 » Facility Improvements at Public Works

Chuck Woolsey, Building Official
 » Fairgrounds
 » Rodeo grounds
 » EOTEC
 » Holiday Inn
 » Seventh Street Apartment Complex
 » Oak Tree Inn
 » MOB
 » State Inspection Program Technology

Larry Fetter, Parks and Recreation Director
 » Senior Center
 » Park Improvements
 » Trail Expansion
 » Skateboard Park Design
 » Code Enforcement Policies
 » Composting Facility
 » Festivals
 » Historical Society/Railroad

Byron Smith, City Manager
 » Branding
 » Juggling a lot of plates

9



Drivers of Change

 ► Service Expectations
 ► Economic Development
 ► Committee Structure
 ► Customer Service
 ► New Legislation
 ► Population Growth
 ► Other Agencies (County, School District, Etc.)
 ► Doing more with less
 ► Retirement, succession planning and turnover

10



Council Goals for 2016 to 2026

DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION (7)
 » Continue work on downtown revitalization through urban renewal
 » Analyze downtown parking conditions

PARKS & RECREATION DEVELOPMENT (8)
 » Park development – trail completion and new parks
 » Eastside park property
 » Code Enforcement Policy Update
 » Recreation Development – Develop trails, river use, and spend money

INFRASTRUCTURE MASTER PLANS (8)
 » Develop master infrastructure plan
 » Utility infrastructure
 » TSP Review (Future Planning for Congestion)

PUBLIC TRANSIT (4) 
 » Develop a public transportation plan

CITY FACILITY ASSESSMENT (8)
 » Look at current city facilities and plan for a city hall which is a one-stop shop for City 

 services
 » Determine what the conference center will be

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (6)
 » Develop an economic development plan that analyzes housing options, tourism, facility 

development, retail, jobs, business attraction and retention

11

The goals below were identified by the Council and Management Team. Following a discussion on 
each of the goals, the group had an opportunity to prioritize the goals through a voting exercise.



EOTEC (15)
 » Finish project
 » Assess future of conference center

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (9)
 » Develop a long range capital improvement/investment plan

SERVICE LEVEL ASSESSMENT (8)
 » Maintain city service levels
 » Reorganize for efficiency
 » Utility maintenance staff
 » Improve and increase online access

ONGOING PROJECTS:
 » Branding
 » GIS
 » Senior Center
 » Implementation of Livability Study Recommendations

 

12



Reflections and Wrap-Up

Insights
 » Good team in place and same target areas
 » Power of working together
 » Council is willing to be courageous
 » Nice to have Council and staff working together
 » People work well together – consensus
 » Takes creativity to get the job done
 » Excited about commitment to the goals and getting them accomplished
 » Amazing how much is going on!
 » How needs fit combined goals
 » How much common groundwork and teamwork is already in place
 » We come to the table to do the job
 » City facilities in the mix to be addressed
 » Enjoyed looking at the vision
 » Lots of things talked about, but the vision is the same
 » Lots of progression planning in a short time
 » Difference in priorities

Challenges for the Future
 » Project completion in a timely manner
 » Keeping up with existing facilities while we grow
 » Find the money
 » EOTEC Sustainability vs. City needs
 » Spaghetti tower and the Vision
 » Meeting expectations we set today
 » Securing funding to accomplish goals
 » Commitment required by these goals – labor and financial 
 » How many public meetings these goals will require
 » The work that lies ahead
 » Implementation and funding of infrastructure plan
 » Putting the priorities into effect
 » Time
 » Funding
 » Marshmallow failure
 » Priorities – so many are important- how to decide?!
 » Catching up on deferred work

13



Things to Look Forward To
 » Expansion of parks and water facilities
 » Collaborative work we are doing to make Hermiston a better place to live
 » Being a part of implementing these goals
 » Managing future growth to accomplish our vision
 » End result
 » Completion of projects
 » New facilities
 » Amazing! Amount of activities for families and kids
 » Senior Center done with a pool table!
 » Seeing these goals become a reality
 » Accomplishments and goals, and a plan in place
 » Seeing the ideas put to the test
 » Looking forward to seeing our goals completed
 » Support for GIS
 » Changing landscape of our town!
 » Enjoying new services and facilities

14



Graphic Summary

Graphic Summary of the Council Retreat
Facilitator: Sara Singer, J Robertson and Company

15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Finance Department 
March 2016 
 

 

Monthly Financial Report 

Includes the Hermiston Urban Renewal Agency 



 

                                                                                                                         Page 1 

 

Through March 31, 2016

by Category (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Rev

Projected 

Rev YTD

Actual Rev 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

%

Var

Prop Taxes 15$           15$             30$             15$           0%

Cash Fwd 60             -              -              -           0%

Total 75$           15$             30$             15$           0%

Note: variance is calculated as a percent of the projected revenue YTD.

Through March 31, 2016

by Character (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Exp

Projected 

Exp YTD

Actual Exp 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

%

Var

Façade Grants 52$           39$             1$                38$           97.4%

Festival St 15             11               10                1               9%

NonDept 3               2                 1                  1               50%

Res for Fut Exp 5               -              -              -           0%

Total 75$           52$             12$             40$           77%

Note: variance is calculated as a percent of the projected expenditures YTD.

Expenditures

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
Hermiston Urban Renewal Agency (HURA)

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

Resources

 $0

 $50

Prop Taxes Cash Fwd

Projected Rev YTD Actual Rev YTD

 $0

 $10

 $20

 $30

 $40

Façade Grants Festival St NonDept

Projected Exp YTD Actual Exp YTD

 

During the month of March a little over $200 was received in property tax revenue bringing the year-to-
date receipts to $29,620.  No expenditures were made in March.  Year-to-date expenditures remain at 
$12,340. 
 

 

 

  



 

                                                                                                                         Page 2 

 

Through March 31, 2016

All Resources (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Rev

Proj Rev 

YTD

Actual Rev 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

% 

Var

Jul 393$          393$           332$        (61)$         (15%)

Aug 418 418 478 60 14%

Sep 242 242 280 38 16%

Oct 355 355 251 (104) (29%)

Nov 4,330 4,330 4,829 499 12%

Dec 885 885 486 (399) (45%)

Jan 333 333 317 (16) (5%)

Feb 490 490 540 50 10%

Mar 293 293 237 (56) (19%)

Apr 360

May 517

Jun 285

Total 8,902        7,740          7,749       9 0%

Cash Fwd 3,813        -              -           -           0%

Total 12,715$    7,740$        7,749$     9$            0%

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
City of Hermiston, Oregon

 

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

General Fund Resources

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Annual Proj Rev Actual Rev YTD

 
 

 

Through March 31, 2016

by Category (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Rev

Proj Rev 

YTD

Actual 

Rev YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

%

Var

Prop Taxes 5,265$     5,026$       4,825$     (201)$       (4%)

Lic 774           574             616          42             7%

Fines 583           438             437          (1)              (0%)

Frm Oth Agen 445           339             398 59             17%

Svc Chgs 1,323       909             1,007 98             11%

Other Rev 513           453             466 12             3%

Cash Fwd 3,813       -              -           -           0%

Total 12,715$   7,740$       7,749$     9$             0%

Note: variance is calculated as a percent of the projected revenue YTD.

General Fund Revenue

 $0
 $1,000
 $2,000
 $3,000
 $4,000
 $5,000
 $6,000

Prop
Taxes

Lic Fines Frm
Oth

Agen

Svc
Chgs

Other
Rev

Cash
Fwd

Proj Rev YTD Actual Rev YTD

 
 
 

As of the end of March the City has received $7,749,000 in General Fund revenues, $9,000 more than year-
to-date projections.  Property Taxes are under projections by $201,000 a 4% variance.  This is offset by 
favorable variances of $98,000 in Service Charges, $59,000 in Receipts from Other Agencies, $42,000 in 
Licenses and Franchises and $12,000 in Other Revenue.  Fines and Penalties are $1,000 under projections. 



 

                                                                                                                         Page 3 

 

 
 

General Fund Expenditures

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
City of Hermiston, Oregon

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016
 
 

Through March 31, 2016

All Requirements (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Exp

Projected 

Exp YTD

Actual Exp 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

% 

Var

Jly 918$          918$           786$        132$        14%

Aug 850            850             777           73            9%

Sep 855            855             853           2               0%

Oct 750            750             643           107          14%

Nov 870            870             798           72            8%

Dec 654            654             724           (70)           (11%)

Jan 882            882             628           254          29%

Feb 621            621             639           (18)           (3%)

Mar 606            606             716           (110)         (18%)

Apr 598            

May 691            

Jun 744            

Total 9,039 7,007 6,564 443 6%

Unapp 3,676 -              -           -           0%

Total 12,715$    7,007$        6,564$     443$        6%

General Fund Expenditure Summary

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

$700

$800

$900

$1,000

Jly Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Annual Proj Exp Actual Exp YTD

 
 

 

Through March 31, 2016

by Consolidated Department (in $1,000)

Annual 

Proj Exp

Projected 

Exp YTD

Actual Exp 

YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

%

Var

Admin 490$        372 369 4$             1%

Law 440 328 318 11 3%

Pub Svc 2,879 2,134 1,931 203 10%

Pub Safe 4,330 3,431 3,157 274 8%

NonDept 901 740 789 (49) (7%)

Unapp 3,676 -              -           -           0%

Total 12,715$   7,007$       6,564$     443$        6%

Note: variance is calculated as a percent of the projected expenditures YTD.

General Fund Expenditures

 $0

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

 $3,500

Admin Law Pub Svc Pub Safe NonDept

Projected Exp YTD Actual Exp YTD

 

General Fund expenditures are under projections by $443,000 at the end of March.  With the exception 
of Non-Departmental all areas are under projections.  Additional budget was added to Non-
Departmental in the supplemental budget request which will correct this variance. 



 

                                                                                                                         Page 4 

 

by Department

Annual Projected 

Exp Projected Exp YTD Actual Exp YTD

Var Fav/

(Unfav)

% Var Fav/

(Unfav)

City Council 32,150 27,080 26,567 513 2%

City Manager/Planning 402,398 303,537 300,979 2,558 1%

Finance 54,964 41,636 41,042 594 1%

   Total Admin & Finance 489,512 372,253 368,588 3,665 1%

Legal 187,700 138,175 133,544 4,631 3%

Court 251,904 190,118 184,232 5,886 3%

   Total Dept of Law 439,604 328,293 317,776 10,517 3%

Transportation 188,375 141,346 101,908 39,438 28%

Airport 241,640 190,230 150,152 40,078 21%

Bldg Inspection 343,262 257,952 253,224 4,728 2%

Parks 477,440 342,342 306,600 35,742 10%

Pool 389,229 280,072 248,572 31,500 11%

Municipal Buildings 12,900 9,185 8,548 637 7%

Library 689,266 515,428 478,542 36,886 7%

Recreation 537,300 397,611 383,424 14,187 4%

   Total Public Services 2,879,412 2,134,165 1,930,970 203,195 10%

Public Safety Center 92,000 68,667 61,657 7,010 10%

Police Operations 4,237,982 3,362,791 3,095,580 267,211 8%

   Total Public Safety 4,329,982 3,431,459 3,157,237 274,222 8%

Non-Departmental 900,565 740,499 789,319 (48,820) (7%)

Unappropriated 3,676,280 0 0 0 0%

   Total Non-Dept 4,576,845 740,499 789,319 (48,820) (7%)

Total 12,715,355 7,006,669 6,563,890 442,779 6%

General Fund Expenditures

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
General Fund Expenditure Detail

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

 

 
 
 

Three quarters of the way through the fiscal year General Fund departments have a collective 6% favorable 
variance.  The reduced number of residents purchasing and using subsidized taxi tickets continues to 
produce budget savings in the Transportation department, which has the largest percentage variance of 
28%.   

Police Operations has the largest dollar variance, a favorable $267,211, despite decreasing by almost 
$65,000 in March.  The bulk of the savings are in overtime, motor vehicle repairs, nuisance abatement, and 
motor vehicle fuel and oil. 

Non-Departmental decreased from a favorable $67,000 in February to an unfavorable $48,820 this month.  
As noted earlier, this is expected to correct once the budget supplement is entered in April.   



 

                                                                                                                         Page 5 

 

Through March 31, 2016

(in $1,000)

Begin 

Fund Bal Rev Exp

End Fund 

Bal

Proj End 

Fund Bal

July 4,547$     332$      (786)$       4,093$     4,022$     

Aug 4,093       478        (777)         3,794       3,590       

Sep 3,794       280        (853)         3,221       2,977       

Oct 3,221       251        (643)         2,829       2,581       

Nov 2,829       4,829    (798)         6,860       6,041       

Dec 6,860       486        (724)         6,622       6,273       

Jan 6,622       317        (628)         6,311       5,724       

Feb 6,311       540        (639)         6,212       5,592       

Mar 6,212       237        (716)         5,732       5,280       

Apr

May

June

Minimum Reserve = $1,355,861 Total 4,547$     7,749$  (6,564)$   5,732$     5,280$     

Ending Fund Balance

General Fund

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
Fund Balance - General Fund 

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

 $0

 $1,000

 $2,000

 $3,000

 $4,000

 $5,000

 $6,000

 $7,000

End Fund Bal Proj End Fund Bal Min Reserve

Min
Res

  

The General Fund has collected 87% of estimated revenues and expended 73% of budgeted expenditures 
bringing the fund balance to $5.7 million.  This is a net increase of $1.2 million since the beginning of the 
fiscal year and puts the fund approximately $4.4 million above the required reserve of $1.4 million.  



 

                                                                                                                         Page 6 

 

Resources & Requirements

Special Revenue Funds

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
Special Revenue  Funds Report

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

 

2015-16 Annual 

Budget Actual YTD

Remaining 

Budget

Bonded Debt Fund

Resources 3,767,354          2,818,307   949,047       

Expenditures 3,527,354          2,894,314   633,040       

Unappropriated Balance 240,000             N/A N/A

Transient Room Tax (TRT)

Resources 573,335             416,678       156,657       

Expenditures 520,000             426,191       93,809         

Unappropriated Balance 53,335                N/A N/A

Recreation Special Revenue

Resources 239,000             18,947         220,053       

Expenditures 57,086                57,085         1                   

Unappropriated Balance 181,914             N/A N/A

Reserve Fund

Resources 10,006,060        2,298,766   7,707,294   

Expenditures 7,798,912          3,138,631   4,660,281   

Unappropriated Balance 2,207,148          N/A N/A

Municipal Court Special Revenue

Resources 281,900             181,416       100,484       

Expenditures 246,900             174,162       72,738         

Unappropriated Balance 35,000                N/A N/A

Miscellaneous Special Revenue

Resources 30,000                16,991         13,009         

Expenditures 30,000                16,871         13,129         

Unappropriated Balance -                      N/A N/A

Conference Center

Resources 249,975             171,868       78,107         

Expenditures 192,475             133,419       59,056         

Unappropriated Balance 57,500                N/A N/A

EOTEC Grant Fund

Resources 5,400,000          -               5,400,000   

Expenditures 5,400,000          3,309,945   2,090,055   

Unappropriated Balance -                      N/A N/A

Law Enforcemnent Special Revenue

Resources 71,500                43,900         27,600         

Expenditures 43,500                28,075         15,425         

Unappropriated Balance 28,000                N/A N/A  

 

Beginning with the 2015-16 

fiscal year the City began 

estimating all of its resources 

in each fund and only 

appropriating what it projects 

it will need for that year.  The 

remainder is carried in the 

fund as Unappropriated 

Balance. 

 

 

 

The City uses multiple Special 

Revenue funds to account for 

revenues that are restricted to 

expenditure for particular 

purposes.  They include funds 

for debt service, economic 

development, parks and 

recreation, capital projects, 

and grants. 

Since these funds are not 

operational in nature and are 

used for specific purposes from 

year-to-year, their 

expenditures do not typically 

follow a predictable pattern so 

budget variances are not 

calculated for them. 

 



 

                                                                                                                         Page 7 

 

Resources & Requirements

Special Revenue Funds

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
Special Revenue  Funds Report

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

 

2015-16 Annual 

Budget Actual YTD

Remaining 

Budget

Library Special Revenue

Resources 58,000                23,485         34,515         

Expenditures 46,000                17,136         28,864         

Unappropriated Balance 12,000                N/A N/A

2014 Water & Sewer Rev Bonds

Resources 1,300,000          623               1,299,377   

Expenditures 1,300,000          591,910       708,090       

Unappropriated Balance -                      N/A N/A

Senior Center Const 

Resources 2,073,360          23,080         2,050,280   

Expenditures 2,073,360          43,210         2,030,150   

Unappropriated Balance -                      N/A N/A
 

  



 

                                                                                                                         Page 8 

 

Resources & Expenditures

2015-16 Annual 

Budget Projected YTD Actual YTD

Variance 

Fav/(Unfav) % Variance

Street Fund

Resources 2,017,500          928,372                 989,409                 61,037                7%

Expenditures 1,348,785          1,123,308             1,077,021 46,287 4%

Unappropriated Balance 668,715              N/A N/A N/A N/A

Utility Fund

Resources 8,480,520          4,397,265             4,478,989             81,724                2%

Expenditures 5,821,305          4,228,576             4,177,044 51,532 1%

Unappropriated Balance 2,659,215          N/A N/A N/A N/A

HES Fund

Resources 11,435,765        6,934,270             7,032,848             98,578                1%

Expenditures 8,697,002          6,705,485             6,436,338 269,147 4%

Unappropriated Balance 2,738,763          N/A N/A N/A N/A

Regional Water Fund

Resources 2,102,000          776,389                 881,145                 104,756             13%

Expenditures 1,324,398          1,038,969             947,833 91,136 9%

Unappropriated Balance 777,602              N/A N/A N/A N/A

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report

Utility and Street Funds Report

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

Utility and Street Funds Report

 
 
 

The Street Fund has received $61,000 more than projected in gas tax through the end of March and has spent 
$46,300 less than projected resulting in a net favorable variance of $107,324.  

The Utility Fund revenue variance is $81,724, a decrease of $20,343 since last month.  Water revenues are 
$53,000 higher than projected and Recycled Water revenues are $22,000 higher.  Excluding capital outlay and 
transfers out, the expenditure variance improved by $35,343.  

Both the revenue  and expenditure variances in the HES fund increased in March.  The revenue variance rose by 
$28,019 and the expenditure variance rose $76,225.  The bulk of the expenditure variance continues to be due 
to power purchases.   

Estimated revenues in the Regional Water Fund are $105,000 over projections, a 13% favorable variance.  Actual 
expenditures are 9% under projections.  The overall net favorable budget variance is $195,892.  



 

                                                                                                                       Page 9 

 

Beginning 

Reserve

Ending

Reserve

%

Ending

Reserve

Minimum 

Reserve 

Requirement Difference

Utility Fund 3,056,640          3,872,731             66.5% 717,695             3,155,036     

HES Fund 3,157,652          4,178,977             48.1% 1,072,233          3,106,744     

Total 6,214,292          8,051,708             - 1,789,928          6,261,780     

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

Reserve Balances

Utility and HES Funds Report

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
Utility and HES Funds Report

 

The City Council has established a minimum working capital (current assets less current liabilities) of  

forty-five (45) days of annual operating expenses for both the Utility Fund and HES Fund.  This equates to 

$717,695 for the Utility Fund and $1,072,233 for the HES Fund.  Both funds have balances well above their 

minimum levels for a total reserve of a little over $8 million.   

 

  



 

                                                                                                                         Page 10 

 

2015-16

Budget

YTD 

Expenditures

LTD

Budget

LTD 

Expenditures % Complete

Airport Improvements 3,531,000$      1,132,153$        3,566,000$      1,397,527$      60%

Eastern OR Trade & Event Ctr (EOTEC) Pipeline 350,000            93,924               1,800,000        786,021            100%

EOTEC Construction 5,400,000        3,309,945          6,400,000        6,208,751        See below

RWTP Outfall -                    151,738             2,500,000        1,315,693        100%

Water Line Extension 1,026,200        401,252             1,250,000        897,307            100%

Total 10,307,200$    5,089,012$        15,516,000$    10,605,299$    

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report
City of Hermiston, Oregon

Capital Projects Report

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

Capital Projects

 

 

Airport Improvements 

The project remained winterized through March.  The contractor is re-mobilizing in April and expects to 

complete the taxiway realignment by June 30.  The FAA has offered to amend the construction grant to also 

include replacement of the 1960’s vintage Runway Lights and Runway End Identifier Lights (REIL’s), which are 

near failure.  A schedule is not yet determined for this additional work. 

EOTEC Pipeline 

This project is now complete.   

EOTEC Construction 

Construction of the Event Center is approximately 99% complete with only punch list items remaining.  The 

first events to be held in the Center are scheduled for mid-May.  Design on the Barns is nearly complete; 

design of the Rodeo Arena is 60% complete.  The Barns and Rodeo Arena are projected to be complete by 

July 2017 which will allow time for move-in and set-up to host the annual Fair and Rodeo in August 2017.   

RWTP Outfall 

This project is now complete. 

Water Line Extension 

This project is now complete. 

 

  



  Page 11 

by Type

Cusip No. Par Value Principal Cost Market Value Issuer

Rating

Moody's/S&P

Days to 

Maturity

Callable 

Y/N

Yield to 

Worst

Call

Yield to 

Maturity

(YTM)

3135G0G31 2,000,000$      1,993,600$      2,000,282$      FNMA Aaa/AA+ 1,034          Y 1.28 1.28

3134G33E8 1,000,000$      997,073$         1,000,016$      FHLMC Aaa/AA+ 1,380          Y 1.57 1.57

3135G0QK2 2,000,000$      1,985,750$      2,000,234$      FFCB Aaa/AA+ 1,282          Y 1.71 1.71

3137EADN6 1,000,000$      978,757$         998,977$          FHLMC Aaa/AA+ 652             N 1.29 1.29

3135G0GY3 1,000,000$      1,013,901$      1,004,791$      FNMA Aaa/AA+ 305             N 0.78 0.78

US Agencies 7,000,000$      6,969,081$      7,004,300$      --- --- --- --- --- ---

LGIP (1) (2)
5,693,492$      5,693,492$      5,693,492$      Varies ---/AA 1 N 0.75 0.75

LGIP 5,693,492$      5,693,492$      5,693,492$      --- --- --- --- --- ---

TOTAL 12,693,492$  12,662,573$   12,697,792$  --- --- --- --- --- ---

Investment Report

2015-2016 Monthly Financial Report

City of Hermiston, Oregon

Investments

For the Month Ending March 31, 2016

The City of Hermiston has established certain policies for its investments.  In order to limit credit and interest 

rate risk, investments are diversified by security type, maturity, issuer, and call provisions.  At least 25% of funds 

available for investing will be invested in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), with a qualified 

depository institution, or investments maturing in less than 90 days.  50% or more of the portfolio will be 

invested in securities maturing in less than three years.  The maximum average maturity for the portfolio shall 

be 3 years and the maximum maturity of individual securities in the portfolio shall be 5 years.  No more than 

75% of the portfolio may be callable.  The minimum weighted average credit rating of the portfolio’s investments 

shall be Aa/AA by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s respectively.  The breakdown of the City’s portfolio is shown 

below. 

Maturity

Par

Value

% of Total

Portfolio

< 90 Days 5,693,492$      44.9%

90 Days - 3 Yrs 4,000,000$      31.5%

3 - 5 Yrs 3,000,000$      23.6%

12,693,492$    100.0%

Type of

Inv

Par

Value

% of Total

Portfolio

US Agency 7,000,000$       55.1%

Corporate -$     0.0%

LGIP 5,693,492$       44.9%

12,693,492$    100.0%

Various Investment

Parameters
With

LGIP

Without

LGIP

WTD Avg Mat 549 549

Wtd Avg Yield to Mat 1.09% 1.37%

Percent Callable 39.4% 71.4%

Wtd Avg Credit Rating Aaa/AA+ Aaa/AA+



CITY OF HERMISTON 

Tons Gallons Units Hours Cost
Cardboard 0.84 $0
Plastic 1.87 $359
Electronics 3.65 $121
Freon Appliances 1.59 $284
Metal 8.47 $0
Grass/Compost 2.61 $73
Wood 4 $359
Concrete 11 $73
Upholstery 1.5 $284
Tires 25.65 $2,290
Paint 1275 $0
Motor Oil 75 $0
Batteries 65 $0
Sub Totals $3,842
Volunteers 56 $0
Staff 170 $2,800
Marketing $500
Total 61.18 1350 65 226 $7,142

Tons Gallons Units Hours Cost
Cardboard 0.97 $0
Plastic 2.71 $542
Electronics 4.1 $169
Freon Appliances 6.24 $801
Metal 16.28 $0
Grass/Compost 2 $73
Wood 2.09 $358
Concrete 20.52 $144
Upholstery 7.38 $842
Tires 20.68 $1,877
Paint 1350 $0
Motor Oil $0
Batteries 0.5 155 $0
Sub Totals $4,807
Volunteers 120 $0
Staff 88 $1,760
Express Labor $170
Marketing $700
Total 83.47 1350 155 208 $7,437

 

 

 

Subject 
Recycle Event 2016 – Summary Report 

Summary and Background 
Background: 
On April 9th, 2015 the City hosted the second annual All-City Recycle Event.  This project was identified 
as a Council priority for 2016.  The overall effort of beatification in Hermiston is multifaceted approach 
to encourage and enable to participate in clean-up efforts and Code Enforcement.  Over 5,000 flyers 
were distributed through the City’s utility billing to notify the public. 

The Recycle Event collected a variety of difficult items to dispose of.  The goal is to collect items to be 
recycled and out of a landfill.  Approximately 270 patrons visited the event which ran from 9am to 3pm.  
The event partners included Umatilla County, Umatilla Electric Cooperative, Starbuck’s, RDO 
Implements, Columbia River Machinery, Sanitary Disposal, Stericycle Environmental Solutions, Casiday 
Batteries and Oregon Paint Care Recycle.   We received very positive feedback from attendees.   

The summary of items collected and event cost for this event are as follows the last two years: 

   2016       2015   

 
 
Tire collection continues to be a very popular disposal item which amounted to over 20.52 tons in 8 
container loads.  Also popular was scrap metal collection at over 16 tons, double the collection from last 
year.  Metal collection has no disposal cost since the materials are recycled as scrap.  Other items 
collected with no cost to the City included paint, batteries, cardboard, and newspaper.  All other 
materials collected have a disposal fee associated.   
 

Staff Report 
For the Meeting of  

MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Item # 

SUBJECT:  

Recycle Event Report 



CITY OF HERMISTON 

Paint collection was provided by Oregon Paint Care which provided staff and collection bins for oil and 
latex paints.  There costs are recovered by Oregon’s Paint Recycle tax which is a surcharge collected at 
the point of each paint purchase.   They collected approximately 1,350 gallons at Hermiston’s event. 
The paint collected is sent to a processing facility where it is recolored and sold as new paint.  We use 
the recycled paint to paint the field lines on the City’s soccer and softball fields at less than half the cost 
of traditional paint.   

Labor for the event represented 34% of the over-all cost of the event.  The presence of City staff is 
essential to operate equipment, lift heavy objects, and coordinate the overall effort.  The use of 
volunteers as station managers greatly kept the cost down.  The City’s Code Enforcement Office was 
present to greet and assist customer at the event.   

Approximately half of the participants were from Hermiston and the remainder from outside of the city.  
Umatilla County contributed $5,000 to the event to allow County residents access to the event.  No out 
of State license plate vehicles were admitted into the event. 

Summary: 

The Hermiston Recycle Event continues to grow in popularity.   The materials collected represented over 
83 tons of material removed from private properties in a single day.  This represents a 38% increase in 
collection from the prior year.  This event is a valuable part of the City’s overall beautification effort and 
represents a positive environmental action.    

Recommendation: 

Continue to make the annual Recycle Event available to the public.  

Requested Action/Motion 

None 

Reviewed by: 

Department Head – Larry Fetter, Director of Parks and Recreation. 

City Manager Approval 


	CC Agenda 04252016
	04252016 National Service Day proclamation
	CC 04112016 work session
	CC 04112016
	03-9-16pc
	4) Streetlights shall also be installed at the applicant’s cost.  Once installed, the City will assume the monthly service charges.  Streetlights have been installed.
	5) Per Section 157.164(E) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, where it has been determined that the extension of public facilities is required, all costs related to such extension shall be borne by the developer.  In addition, any extension of the fa...
	3) Streetlights shall also be installed at the applicant’s cost.  Once installed, the City will assume the monthly service charges.
	4) Per Section 157.164(E) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, where it has been determined that the extension of public facilities is required, all costs related to such extension shall be borne by the developer.  In addition, any extension of the fa...

	HAC Mins 03212016
	Staff Report City Surplus
	04252016 Auction Surplus Items
	Final Plat Staff Report CC
	Phase 1 Sheet 2 dtd 3-2-16
	Property Map
	Staff Report
	James Tiede
	Res. 2023 Map 
	Res No 2023
	Staff Report
	Ord. No. 2240
	Council Goals



